










u.s. government offices

FEDERAL INFORMATION CENTER
http://www.FirstGov.gov

Main Number .................................. 800-FED-INFO
  Or................................................ 800-333-4636
ADOPTION

General Information ........................ 800-862-3678
AGING, ADMINISTRATION ON

http://aoa.gov

Eldercare Locator ............................ 800-677-1116
AGRICULTURE, DEPT OF

http://www.usda.gov

General Information
  Washington, DC .......................... 202-720-2791

Agricultural Statistics
http://www.usda.gov/nass

Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service
  See listing under Animal and Plant Health
  Inspection Service

Food – see listing under Food
Forest Service – see listing under
Forest Service Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 800-424-9121
USDA Service Centers

  Autauga County - 2226 Hwy 14 W

   Autaugaville ............................. 334-365-5532
  Butler County - 320 Greenville Bypass

   Greenville................................. 334-382-8538
  Conecuh County - 102 Liberty St

   Evergreen ................................ 251-578-1520
  Covington County - 23952 Alabama Hwy 55

   Andalusia................................. 334-222-3519
  Crenshaw County - 1686 S Forest Ave

   Luverne ................................... 334-335-6507
  Dallas County - 105 Samuel O Moseley Dr

   Selma ...................................... 334-872-3433
  Elmore County - 105 Gossom Switch Rd

   Wetumpka ............................... 334-567-2264
  Lowndes County - 15 N Washington St

   Hayneville ................................ 334-548-2767
  Monroe County - 334 Agriculture Dr

   Monroeville.............................. 251-743-2587
  Montgomery County - 2000 Interstate Park Dr

   Montgomery............................ 334-223-7257
  Wilcox County - 3 Camden Bypass

   Camden ................................... 334-682-4117
AIDS HOTLINE

General Information ........................ 800-342-2437
En Español – SIDA .......................... 800-344-7432

AIR FORCE, DEPT OF
Recruiting – see listing under Recruiting

ALCOHOL INFORMATION
Treatment Referrals......................... 800-662-4357
Prevention and Treatment ............... 800-729-6686

ALCOHOL, TOBACCO, FIREARMS AND
EXPLOSIVES, BUREAU OF

http://www.atf.gov

Birmingham Group I ....................... 205-583-5920
Birmingham Group II ...................... 205-583-5950
Birmingham Group III ..................... 205-583-5970
Emergency After Hours................... 205-326-9977
Recruitment and Hiring Center........ 202-927-5690
Tips Line ......................................... 888-283-8477

ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION
SERVICE – APHIS

http://www.aphis.usda.gov

ARMY, DEPT OF
Recruiting – see listing under Recruiting

BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT
http://www.blm.gov

CANCER, NATIONAL INSTITUTE’S
INFORMATION SERVICE – CIS

Main Number .................................. 800-422-6237
TTY ...............................................  800-332-8615

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL
AND PREVENTION

http://www.cdc.gov

General Information ........................ 404-639-3311
CHILD HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

General Information ........................ 877-543-7669
CITIZENSHIP – US CITIZENSHIP AND
IMMIGRATION SERVICES – USCIS
PART OF HOMELAND SECURITY

http://www.uscis.gov

Customer Service............................ 800-375-5283
TTY ................................................ 800-767-1833
Employer Information ..................... 800-357-2099

COAST GUARD
http://www.uscg.mil

Boating Safety Hotline..................... 800-368-5647
Recruiting – see listing under Recruiting

COMMERCE, DEPT OF
Minority Business Development Agency
Regional Office

  401 W Peachtree St NW, Ste 1715

  Atlanta, GA 30308 ........................... 404-730-3300
  Fax .............................................. 404-730-3313

District Office
  51 SW First Ave, Rm 1314

  Miami, FL 33130 ................................... 305-536-5054
  Fax .............................................. 305-530-7068

US Export Assistance Center
  950 22nd St N, Rm 707
  Birmingham, AL 35203............... 205-731-1331
  Fax ............................................. 205-731-0076
CONGRESS
SENATORS

Sessions, Jeff
http://sessions.senate.gov

  7550 Halcyon Summit Dr, Ste 150

  Montgomery, AL 36117..................... 334-244-7017
Washington, DC Office ..................... 202-224-4124

Shelby, Richard C
http://shelby.senate.gov

  1 Church St, Rm C-561

  Montgomery, AL 36104..................... 334-223-7303
  Washington, DC Office ..................... 202-224-5744
REPRESENTATIVES

Bachus, Spencer
http://bachus.house.gov

  703 Second Ave N

  Clanton, AL 35046........................... 205-280-0704
Davis, Artur
http://www.house.gov/arturdavis

  908 Alabama Ave, Ste 112

  Selma, AL 36701............................. 334-877-4414
  Washington, DC Office ..................... 202-225-2665

Everett, Terry
http://wwwc.house.gov/everett

  3500 Eastern Blvd, Ste 250

  Montgomery, AL 36116..................... 334-277-9113
  Washington, DC Office ..................... 202-225-2901

Rogers, Mike
http://www.house.gov/mike-rogers

  7550 Halcyon Summit Dr, Ste 100

  Montgomery, AL 36117..................... 334-277-4210
  Washington, DC Office ..................... 202-225-3261

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT
THROUGH THE INTERNET:

BLUE PAGES ONLINE:

http://USBluePages.gov
FEDERAL INFORMATION:

http://FirstGov.gov
CONSUMER INFORMATION:

http://pueblo.gsa.gov
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u.s. government offices

CONSERVATION
Soil and Water

  USGS National Water
  Information Center...................... 888-275-8747
CONSUMER HOTLINES

Air Travel Consumer Complaints
  Airfare, lost luggage, food sales, charter

   operations .................................. 202-366-2220
Auto Safety Hotline

  Report safety defects and obtain

  information on child safety seats, motorcycle helmets, 

  tires and equipment, crash test results, vehicle safety 

  recalls and traffic safety information...... 800-424-9393
Aviation Consumer Hotline

  Child safety seats, airport security procedures, user 

  services such as examinations, aircraft certification, 

  and facility operations...................... 800-FAA-SURE
  Or................................................ 800-322-7873

Aviation Safety Hotline
  Report violations of federal aviation

  regulations ..................................... 800-255-1111
Hazardous Materials Spills or Pipeline Leaks

Nat’l Response Ctr – 24 hrs............... 800-424-8802
CONSUMER INFORMATION CENTER,
FEDERAL – FCIC

http://www.pueblo.gsa.gov

  For FCIC Catalog ........................ 888-8-PUEBLO
  Or................................................ 888-878-3256
CONSUMER PRODUCT SAFETY COMMISSION

http://www.cpsc.gov

  Consumer Hotline – Call to obtain product safety 

  information, report unsafe products, and obtain 

  other agency info............................. 800-638-2772
  TTY ............................................. 800-638-8270
COURTS – FEDERAL

Bankruptcy Court
http://www.almb.uscourts.gov

  1 Church St, Montgomery

  Clerk’s Office/Information ........... 334-954-3800
  VCIS............................................ 334-954-3868

District Court
http://www.almd.uscourts.gov

  1 Church St, Montgomery

  Clerk’s Office/Information ........... 334-954-3600
Probation/Pretrial

136 Catoma St, Montgomery ............. 334-954-3226
CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION

http://www.cbp.gov

Criminal Violations – Drug Smuggling, 

  Illegal Imports/Exports and Counterfeit 

  Merchandise ..................................800-BE-ALERT
  Or................................................ 800-232-5378

General Information ........................ 877-287-8667
DEAF, HARD OF HEARING AND
SPEECH DISABLED

Federal Relay Service
http://www.gsa.gov/frs

  TTY/Voice/ASCII/Spanish
  To Initiate Calls............................ 800-877-8339

  FRS Customer Service ................ 800-877-0996
  TTY Federal Online Directory
  TTY and ASCII Users Only .......... 800-877-8845
DEFENSE, DEPT OF

Defense Finance and Accounting Service
  Active Duty Pay........................... 800-346-3374
  Annuitant Pay.............................. 800-321-1080
  Military Retired Pay..................... 800-321-1080
  Reserve Duty Pay........................ 800-255-0974
DISEASE AND HEALTH RISK INFORMATION

Main Number .................................. 888-232-3228
Fax ................................................ 888-232-3299
TTY Fax ........................................... 877-232-1010

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE HOTLINE
General Information ........................ 800-799-7233

DRUG INFORMATION
Treatment Referrals......................... 800-662-4357
Prevention and Treatment ............... 800-729-6686

EARTH SCIENCE
USGS Earth Science Info Ctr........... 888-275-8747

EDUCATION
Education, Dept of
http://www.ed.gov

  General Information and Employee

  Locator 9am-5pm EST ................. 800-USA-LEARN
  Or................................................ 800-872-5327
  TTY ............................................. 800-437-0833
  Civil Rights.................................. 800-421-3481
ENVIRONMENT

Water
USGS National Water

  Information Center...................... 888-275-8747
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR
IMMIGRATION REVIEW

http://www.usdoj.gov/eoir

  Information on Pending Cases.... 800-898-7180
  Or................................................ 703-305-1662
  For general immigration and citizenship matters, 

  contact Immigration

FARM SERVICES
http://www.fsa.usda.gov

  See USDA Service Centers listing under Agriculture, 

  Dept of

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
http://www.fbi.gov

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
http://www.fcc.gov

  445 12th St SW, Washington, DC 20554

Consumer Information Center......... 888-225-5322
TTY ................................................ 888-835-5322
Fax ................................................ 866-418-0232
Forms Distribution .......................... 800-418-3676
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 888-863-2244
FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION

550 17th St NW, Washington, DC ........... 877-275-3342

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
– FEMA

National Flood Insurance Program
  See listing under Flood

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
http://www.fws.gov

National Programs Guide
  Refuges, endangered species, information for teachers, 

  migratory birds, volunteers, Duck Stamp, fisheries

  conservation.......................................... 800-344-9453
FLOOD

National Flood
  Insurance Program ..................... 800-427-2354
FLU OR INFLUENZA INFORMATION

Voice/Fax......................................... 888-232-3228
FOOD

Food Assistance and Nutrition Program Information
http://www.fns.usda.gov

  Food Recovery and Gleaning Hotline Donation, 

  Collection and Distribution Information . 800-453-2648
Food Safety and Inspection Service
http://www.fsis.usda.gov

  Meat, Poultry and Egg 

  Products Inspection ......................... 800-535-4555
FOREST SERVICE

http://www.fs.fed.us

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION – GSA
http://www.gsa.gov

Auction Hotline ............................... 800-472-2886
Federal Protective Service............... 800-767-2756
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 800-424-5210
National Customer

  Service Center............................. 800-488-3111
Sale and Transfer of

  Federal Real Estate...................... 800-472-1313
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, US

See listing under Natural Resources

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPT OF
http://hhs.gov

http://healthfinder.gov

  HHS Information
  Federal Government.................... 877-696-6775
  Discrimination Complaints.......... 800-368-1019

http://hhs.gov/ocr

  TTY ............................................. 800-537-7697
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 800-447-8477
  TTY ............................................. 800-377-4950
HEALTH CARE INFORMATION FOR HEALTH CARE
PROFESSIONALS AND CONSUMERS

Main Number .................................. 800-358-9295
TTY ................................................ 888-586-6340

HEPATITIS INFORMATION
Main Number .................................. 888-443-7232

HORSES
Wild Horse and Burro Adoption ...... 866-468-7826

22



u.s. government offices

HOUSING
Housing and Urban Development, Dept of
http://www.hud.gov

Housing/FHA
  To Buy a HUD Home – contact a local real estate agent

  FHA Insured Loans – contact a local bank or 

   lending agency

  Housing Counseling for Home Buyers and 

   Renters...................................... 800-569-4287
  TTY........................800-358-6216

Housing Discrimination
  Hotline ........................................ 800-669-9777
  TTY ............................................. 800-927-9275

Public and Assisted Housing 
  – contact the local Public Housing Authority

IMMIGRATION – US CITIZENSHIP AND
IMMIGRATION SERVICES – USCIS
PART OF HOMELAND SECURITY

http://www.uscis.gov

  Customer Service........................ 800-375-5283
   TTY.......................................... 800-767-1833
  Employer Information ................. 800-357-2099
IMMUNIZATION
  National Information Hotline ....... 800-232-2522
  Fax Service Information .............. 800-232-7468
INDIAN PROGRAMS AND SERVICES,
AMERICAN

Indian Affairs, Bureau of
  http://www.doi.gov/bureau-indian-affairs.html

Indian Health Service
  http://www.ihs.gov

INTERIOR, DEPT OF
http://www.doi.gov

  The Nation’s Principal Conservation Agency 

  Responsible for Most Nationally Owned Public Land 

  and Natural Resources

1849 C St NW, Washington, DC 20240

  General Info and Locator............. 202-208-3100
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 800-424-5081
  TTY ............................................. 800-354-0996
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE

http://www.irs.gov

  Need a Tax Form ......................... 800-829-3676
  Fax-on-Demand .......................... 703-368-9694
  24 Hr/day Recorded Tax Info....... 800-829-4477
  24 Hr/day Refund Status
   Self Serve ................................ 800-829-4477
  Tax Help Line
   – Individuals .............................. 800-829-1040
  Business/Specialty Tax Line ........ 800-829-4933
  Refund Hotline ............................ 800-829-1954
   TTY.......................................... 800-829-4059
  Report Tax Fraud Violations ........ 800-829-0433
  National Taxpayer Advocate ........ 877-777-4778
  Tax Exempt/Govt Entities............. 877-829-5500

JUSTICE, DEPT OF
http://www.usdoj.gov

  Community Oriented Policing Services, 
   Office of – COPS
   1100 Vermont Ave NW, Washington, DC

   Response Center ..................... 202-514-2058
   Or ............................................ 800-421-6770
  Racial Conflict
   600 E St NW, Washington, DC.......... 202-305-2935
  Executive Office for Immigration Review
   See listing under Executive Office for 

   Immigration Review

  Federal Bureau of Investigation 
   – see listing under Federal Bureau of Investigation

  Foreign Claims Settlement Commission 
   of the United States
   600 E St NW, Washington, DC.......... 202-616-6975
   Chair........................................ 202-616-6985
  Immigration – see listing under Immigration –

   US Citizenship and Immigration Services – USCIS

   Part of Homeland Security

  Marshals Service 
   – see listing under Marshals Service

  Prisons, Bureau of
   320 First St NW, Washington, DC .... 202-307-3198
  National Institute of
   Corrections.............................. 800-995-6423
   Or ............................................ 202-307-3106
  Solicitor General, Office of the
   950 Pennsylvania Ave NW, Washington, DC

   Administration......................... 202-514-2203
   Case Management Section ...... 202-514-2218
LABOR, DEPT OF

http://www.dol.gov

General Information ........................866-4USADOL
  TTY ............................................. 877-889-5627

For Job Training and Employment 
  Information ................................ 877-US2-JOBS

Fraud, Waste and Abuse ................. 800-347-3756
Wage and Hour Division ...............866-4US-WAGE

LABOR RELATIONS
National Labor Relations Board
http://www.nlrb.gov

  General Information .................... 866-667-6572
  TTY ............................................. 866-315-6572
LAW ENFORCEMENT

See listing under Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms 

  and Explosives, Bureau of

LOANS
Education Loans
http://studentaid.ed.gov

  Student Financial Aid Information
  Application Forms for Student Loans and Grants; 
  Student Guide to Financial Aid .... 800-4FED-AID
   Or ............................................ 800-433-3243

Borrowers Who Owe Defaulted Student 
  Loans .......................................... 800-621-3115

MAPS
USGS Earth Science

  Information Center...................... 888-275-8747
MARINE CORPS

Recruiting – see listing under Recruiting

MARSHALS SERVICE
http://www.usdoj.gov/marshals

General Information and
  Tipster Line ................................ 877-WANTED2
  Or................................................ 877-926-8332

Employment Information ................ 202-307-9400
MATERNAL AND CHILD HEALTH INFORMATION

Main Number .................................. 703-356-1964
MEDICARE

General Information ........................ 800-633-4227
Eligibility ......................................... 800-772-1213
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............. 800-447-8477
  TTY ............................................. 800-377-4950

Medicare Health Plan
  Choices Information.................... 800-633-4227
  TTY ............................................. 877-486-2048

Replacement/Lost
  Medicare Card............................. 800-772-1213
MENTAL HEALTH INFORMATION

Main Number .................................. 800-789-2647
MINERAL RESOURCES

Minerals Management Service
  http://www.mms.gov

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation
  and Enforcement
  http://www.osmre.gov

USGS Minerals Information ............ 888-275-8747
NATIONAL ARCHIVES AND RECORDS
ADMINISTRATION

http://www.archives.gov

General Information Recording....... 866-272-6272
NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICE CORPS

Application Information................... 800-221-9393
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

http://www.nps.gov

NATIONAL PRACTITIONER DATA BANK
Application Information................... 800-767-6732

NATURAL RESOURCES
Geological Survey, US

  http://www.usgs.gov

Natural Resources Conservation Svc – NRCS
  http://www.nrcs.usda.gov

National Earth Team
  Volunteer Service........................ 888-526-3227

See also USDA Service Centers listing under 

  Agriculture, Dept of

NAVY, DEPT OF
Recruiting – see listing under Recruiting
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH 
INFORMATION – NIOSH

Main Number .................................. 800-356-4674
PASSPORTS

http://travel.state.gov

  Detailed Information ................... 877-487-2778
  TTY ............................................. 888-874-7793
PEACE CORPS

Information ..................................... 800-424-8580
Inspector General

  Fraud, Waste and Abuse ............ 800-233-5874
PERMITS

Explosives
  Federal Requirements ................. 404-417-2750

Gun Dealers
  Federal Requirements ................. 404-417-2750

See also listing under Alcohol, Tobacco, 

  Firearms and Explosives, Bureau of

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY INFORMATION
Main Number .................................. 888-232-4674

POSTAL SERVICE
http://www.usps.com

General Information
  ZIP Codes, Postage Rates, Hours
   and Locations.........................800-ASK-USPS
  Or................................................ 800-275-8777
  TTY – Hearing Impaired Only ...... 877-877-7833

Express Mail Tracking, Signature
  and Delivery Confirmation,
  Packaging ................................... 800-222-1811

Stamps by Phone............................ 800-STAMP24
Services

  Change of Address, Redelivery,
  Vacation Hold Mail, Service
  Issues ......................................... 800-275-8777

Employment Information ................ 866-999-8777
Consumer Affairs ............................ 800-275-8777
Postal Inspection Service................ 205-326-2900

PRIMARY CARE INFORMATION FOR
COMMUNITY, RURAL, MIGRANT HEALTH

Main Number ...........................703-821-8955x318
PRISONS, BUREAU OF

See listing under Justice, Dept of

RECRUITING
Air Force.......................................... 800-423-8723
Army ............................................... 800-872-2769
Coast Guard

  http://www.gocoastguard.com

  General Information .................877-NOW-USCG
  Or................................................ 877-669-8724

Marine Corps .................................. 800-627-4637
Navy................................................ 800-872-6289
Naval Reserve ..........................800-533-4542x157

RUNAWAY, NATIONAL SWITCHBOARD
General Information ........................ 800-621-4000

RURAL DEVELOPMENT
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov

  Cooperative services, loans and grants for rural 

   housing, business development, utilities, and 

   community facilities

  See USDA Service Centers listing under Agriculture, 

   Dept of

SCIENCE, SPACE AND TECHNOLOGY
Earth Science

  USGS Earth Science
   Information Center .................. 888-275-8747
SECRET SERVICE

http://www.secretservice.gov

SELECTIVE SERVICE SYSTEM
Registration Information

  Office .......................................... 847-688-6888
SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASES HOTLINE

General Information ........................ 800-227-8922
SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

http://www.sba.gov

  General Info and Publications ..... 800-827-5722
  Inspector General
   Fraud, Waste and Abuse.......... 800-767-0385
  Loan and Program Information
   Answer Desk............................ 800-827-5722
SMOKING AND HEALTH INFORMATION

Voice/Fax......................................... 800-232-1311
SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

http://www.socialsecurity.gov

  Retirement, Survivors, Disability or 
   Supplemental Security Income
  SSI Benefits
   For General Information and Services,

   or to Schedule an Appointment, 

   Call 7am-7pm ............................. 800-772-1213
  Selected Automated Services
   Available 24 Hours

   TTY Only 7am-7pm ..................... 800-325-0778
STATE, DEPT OF

Passports – see listing under Passports

SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT
AND REFERRAL

General Information ........................ 800-662-4357
TAXES

Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms Federal
  Excise Tax ................................... 877-882-3277

Special Occupational Tax 
  – including Retail Liquor
   Dealers .................................... 800-937-8864

Federal Income Taxes 

  – see listing under Internal Revenue Service

TRAVELERS’ INTERNATIONAL HEALTH 
ADVISORY

General Information ........................ 877-394-8747

TREATMENT REFERRAL, ALCOHOL OR DRUG
General Information ........................ 800-662-4357

ULCER, PEPTIC
Fax Information............................... 888-698-5237

VACCINE INJURY COMPENSATION
Information and Claims Hotline....... 800-338-2382

VISITOR CENTERS
Visitors Guide – National Recording

  Fish and Wildlife Service............. 800-344-9453
VOLUNTEER OPPORTUNITIES

Earth Science Corps
  Volunteer for 
   Earth Science Activities ........... 800-254-8040
WATER RESOURCES

Reclamation, Bureau of
  http://www.usbr.gov

USGS National Water
  Information Center...................... 888-275-8747
WEATHER

National Oceanic and Atmospheric
  Administration – NOAA

National Weather Service Forecast Office
  http://www.srh.noaa.gov/bmx

  465 Weathervane Rd

  Calera, AL 35040 .................................. 205-664-3010
Report Severe Weather ................... 800-856-0758
NOAA Weather Radio

  162.425 MHz – Greenville

  162.400 MHz – Montgomery

  162.450 MHz – Selma

Certified weather records and
  historical climate data National Climatic
  Data Center ........................................ 828-271-4800
  http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov

Southeast Regional
  Climate Center............................. 803-734-9100
  http://water.dnr.state.sc.us/climate/sercc

WILDLIFE
See listing under Fish and Wildlife Service

WOMEN’S HEALTH INFORMATION
Main Number .................................. 888-232-3228
Fax-on-Demand .............................. 888-232-3299

PLEASE GIVE US 
YOUR COMMENTS & 
SUGGESTIONS
concerning the Federal Blue 

Pages by either

calling toll free at:

or visiting our web page:

http://USBluePages.gov
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worship communities
AFRICAN METHODIST
EPISCOPAL
Greater Mt. Olive AME Zion Church

P O Box 521 Hayneville ..................................... 548-5676
Mt Zion AME Zion Church

360 Academy Ln Hayneville ............................... 548-2619

ASSEMBLY OF GOD
St Clair Assembly of God

866 Hwy 80 E Lowndesboro............................... 278-3586

BAPTIST
Baptist Hill Baptist Church

4167 State Hwy 87 Lowndesboro ....................... 278-3336
Bougahoma Baptist Church

170 Co Rd 17 Hayneville.................................... 563-9222
First Baptist Church

Hayneville............................................................ 548-2074
Friendship Baptist Church

1882 Hwy 97 S Hayneville ................................. 548-5001
Hayneville Baptist Church

820 Hwy 21 N Hayneville .................................. 548-2620
Hopewell Baptist Church

1832 Hwy 80 W Lowndesboro ........................... 278-3276
Lowndesboro Baptist Church

Lowndesboro........................................................ 278-3431
Lowndesboro First Baptist Church

Lowndesboro........................................................ 278-3530
Morning Star Baptist Church

594 Y C Nichols Rd Lowndesboro ...................... 278-3459
Mt Carmel Baptist Church

864 Wall St Hayneville ....................................... 563-7897
Mt Elam Baptist Church

4025 Co Rd 17 Hayneville.................................. 563-7876
Mt. Moriah Church

129 Mt Moriah Rd Hayneville ............................ 563-9235
Mt. Moriah II Baptist Church

117 Bracy Hill Dr Hayneville ............................. 563-7765
Mt Sinai Baptist Church

105 Mt Sinai Dr Hayneville ................................ 548-2008
Mt Teman Baptist Church

2699 Rudolph Rd Tyler ....................................... 563-7868
New Mt Lily Baptist Church

127 Carnes Rd Hayneville .................................. 563-9633
Original Shiloh Primitive Baptist Church

403 Davis Rd Hope Hull ..................................... 548-2628

Shiloh Baptist Church
4919 Collerine Cutoff Rd Tyler .......................... 563-7071

CHRISTIAN
Big Union Christian Church

901 Dickey Rd Hayneville................................... 548-5839
Little Union Christian Church

500 Pine St Hayneville ........................................ 548-6280
New Hope Christian Church

5748 Co Rd 33 Letohatchee ................................ 548-2504
Sellers Memorial Christian Church

625 Freedom Rd Hayneville ................................ 563-9147
Hayneville Christian Methodist Church

200 Washington St Hayneville ............................ 548-6399

CATHOLIC
Good Shepherd Catholic Center

1258 Main St Hayneville .................................... 563-9139

CHRISTIAN METHODIST
EPISCOPAL
Ash Creek CME Church

328 Co Rd 17 Hayneville.................................... 563-9063
St Paul CME Church

3558 Co Rd 17 Hayneville.................................. 563-7598

CHURCH OF CHRIST
Hayneville Church of Christ

90 Commerce St N Hayneville............................ 548-2978

CHURCH OF GOD
Hayneville AOH Church of God

114 Reeves Dr Hayneville ................................... 563-9291

JEHOVAH’S WITNESS
Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witness

104 Woodland Dr Hayneville.............................. 548-2046

PRESBYTERIAN
Presbyterian Church

Hayneville............................................................ 548-2285

AFFILIATED RELIGIOUS
ORGANIZATIONS
Ark of Love Ministries

117 Bracy Hill Dr Hayneville ............................. 563-7949
Christian Missions Unlimited

P O Box 58 Hope Hull........................................ 284-0878
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lowndes county

elected officials

municipalitIes

DISTRICT I
Robert Harris
190 Town Creek Drive
Lowndesboro, AL 36752
Term of Office: 11/2006 – 11/2010

Telephone ......................... 334-874-7624

DISTRICT II
Charlie King, Jr., Chairman
3476 County Road 9, Tyler, AL 36785
Term of Office: 11/2004-11/2008

Telephone ......................... 334-875-4541

DISTRICT III
Marzett Thomas
340 Crawley Drive, Fort Deposit, AL 36032
Term of Office: 11/2004 – 11/2008

Telephone ......................... 334-227-4291

DISTRICT IV
Joseph Barganier
2029 State Highway 185W
Fort Deposit, AL 36032
Term of Office: 11/2006 – 11/2010

Telephone ......................... 334-227-8480

DISTRICT V
Dickson Farrior
P O Box 99, Letohatchee, AL 36047
Term of Office: 11/2004 – 11/2008

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2144

SENATOR – 23RD DISTRICT
Henry Sanders
11 South Union Street – Suite 730
Montgomery, AL 36103

Telephone ......................... 334-242-7860

SENATOR – 30TH DISTRICT
Wendall Mitchell
11 South Union Street-Suite 726B
Montgomery, AL 36103

Telephone ......................... 334-242-7883

REPRESENATIVE – 69TH DISTRICT
James L. Thomas
P O Box 1089, Camden, AL 36726

Telephone ......................... 334-242-7701

JUDGE OF PROBATE
John E. Hulett, Jr.
P O Box 5, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2365

TAX ASSESSOR
Willie Ruth Myrick
P O Box 186, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2271
Fax..................................... 334-548-5342

SHERIFF
Charlie Williams
P O Box 157, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2222
Fax..................................... 334-548-5621

DISTRICT JUDGE
Terri Bozeman-Lovell
P O Box 455, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2591
Fax..................................... 334-548-5449

CIRCUIT CLERK - Ruby Jones
P O Box 876, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2252
Fax..................................... 334-548-2548

COUNTY ATTORNEY - Collins Pettaway
P O Box 1290, Selma, AL 36702-1290

TAX COLLECTOR - Roslyn Smith
P O Box 186, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2175
Fax..................................... 334-548-5342

TOWN OF MOSSES
Walter Hill, Mayor
Mary Hester, Clerk
P O Box 296, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ............................. 334-563-9141

TOWN OF HAYNEVILLE
Helenor Bell, Mayor
Susie Smith, Administrator
P O Box 365, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ............................. 334-548-2128

TOWN OF BENTON
Donnie Cooper, Mayor
379 Washington Street, Benton, AL 36785
Telephone ............................. 334-242-8240
Or .......................................... 334-874-7878

TOWN OF FORT DEPOSIT
Fletcher Fountain, Mayor
Cynthia Jones, Clerk
P O Box 290, Fort Deposit, AL 36032
Telephone ............................. 334-227-4841

TOWN OF WHITEHALL
John Jackson, Mayor
Bertha White, Clerk
625 Freedom Road, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ............................. 334-875-5703

TOWN OF GORDONVILLE
Willie Davis, Mayor
Brenda Davis, Clerk
412 Wall Street, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ............................. 334-563-9280

TOWN OF LOWNDESBORO
Rick Pate, Mayor
Melanie McPherson, Clerk
P O Box 130, Lowndesboro, AL 36752
Telephone ............................. 334-278-3434
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community services
HEALTH

Department of Human Resources
P O Box 36, 204 Highway 97
Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2156
Fax..................................... 334-548-2807
Hours: 8:00 am – 4:30 am
Monday thru Friday
Description of Organization: The administration of 
public welfare for citizens.

Family Health Care of Alabama/
Lowndes County Health Services/
SOBRA Program/
West Alabama HealthCare
P O Box 735, 100 Oak Street
Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2516
Fax..................................... 334-548-2521
Description of Organization: Comprehensive Health 
Care, Dental, Medical, Senior Citizen Program, 
SOBRA Medicaid, WIC, Transportation, Social 
Security, OCAP, Outreach Services, Americorps, 
Prenatal Care, Medicaid Screening and Immuniza-
tion, Nutritional Counseling, etc. Payment is based on 
income and number in household.

Lowndes County Community Based
Organization Coalition
P O Box 791, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2516
Fax..................................... 334-548-2521
Description of Organization: Home Health Aid pro-
gram, 13-Week Program/75, National Certification

Lowndes County Health Department
P O Box 35, Highway 26, Tuskeena Street
Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2564
Fax..................................... 334-548-2566
Hours: 8:00 am – 5:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Organization: Maternity and well-child 
care, Medicaid screening, AIDS, TB, and ST testing, 
WIC, immunizations, home health care, vital statis-
tics, family planning, home health and rehabilitation 
services, AIDS/HIV screening and treatment, health 
information, education and promotion, public health 
nursing services.

Lowndes County Mental Health Services
P O Box 275, 5 Academy Lane
Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone ......................... 334-548-2578
Fax..................................... 334-548-5564
Hours: 8:00 am – 4:30 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Organization: Provides children’s 
services, adult outpatient, follow-up, consultation and 
education, counseling for adults and children.

Lowndes County WIC Program
P O Box 735, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2521
Description of Organization: A food supplement 
program for low income pregnant and breast feeding 
women and children with nutritional needs.

New Hope Nutrition Center
P O Box 735, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2504
Description of Organization: Provides nutrition and 
transportation for the elderly and disabled.

Organized Community Action 
Program (OCAP)
P O Box 758, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2768
Hours: 8:00 am – 4:30 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Organization: Program designed to help 
people help themselves.

HOUSING

Pecan Lane Apartments
25 Pecan Street, Hayneville, AL 36040
The Meadows Apartments
25 Oak Street, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2003
Hours: 8:00 am – 5:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Services: Provides apartment housing to 
individuals who must be 62 years of age or disabled. 
Cost is determined by gross yearly income. Equipped 
with ramped walkways, refrigerator, air conditioning, 
heating, and distress alarm system. The grounds are 
maintained.

Willow Non-Profit Housing 
Corporation, Inc.
P O Box 383, 200A Commerce Street
Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2191
Fax..................................... 334-548-2576

Hours: 8:00 am – 4:30 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Services: Provides low income families 
the opportunity to acquire new homes, to renovate or 
repair existing home or to engage in other self-help proj-
ects related to the improvement of housing conditions.

SOCIAL & LEGAL SERVICES

Community Action Agency
P O Box 758, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone: 334-548-2768
Description: Seeks solutions to the social and economic 
problems as they relate to poverty.  To help people be-
come self-reliant and self-supportive.  Services provided 
are LIHEAP (Low Income Home Energy Assistance 
Program), crisis cooling/heating, commodities, homeless 
aid, food, shelter, utilities, FEMA, food vouchers, 
shelter and utility payments, clothes closet, referrals, 
Alabama Business Charitable Trust Fund, etc.

Legal Services Corporation of Alabama
Hayneville/Lowndes County Library
P O Box 425, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone: 334-548-2686
Description: Provides legal service for low income 
people involving civil cases only.

Social Security Administration, 
Hayneville
2nd Floor, Lowndes County 
Health Services
100 Oak Street, Hayneville, AL 36040
Hours: 9:00 am – 12:00 noon
1st & 3rd Monday each month
Description: Determines eligibility for Medicare, Med-
icaid, SSI, and Social Security benefit programs

TRANSPORTATION

Lowndes County Rural Transportation
P O Box 65, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone: 334-548-6364
Hours: 7:30 am – 4:30 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description: Provides transportation to various loca-
tions such as doctors office, work,school, etc., for those 
who have no other means of transportation
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community services

community events

West Alabama Medicaid Waiver
Adult Day Care
P O Box 735, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2516
Description: To provide home and community base 
services, adult care service, a center which has activi-
ties, meals, and friendship for those who would like 
to spend their days out of the house. A person may 
choose to go every day or just a few days.

Nutrition Site – Aging Program
P O Box 64, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2003
Hours: 10:00 am – 2:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description: Adult meal program - source of nutrition 
for the elderly. Available to senior citizens. Small fee 
charged for meals.

Senior Citizens Multi-Purpose Center
Nutrition Program for the Elderly
P O Box 640, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2112

Hours: 9:00 am – 2:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description: Provides the opportunity for the elderly to 
get together and become acquainted, participate in arts 
and crafts programs, etc, and to share a meal time.

EMERGENCY SERVICES

Lowndes County Civil Defense/
Emergency Management Agency
P O Box 65, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2569
Hours: 8:00 am – 5:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description of Organization: Coordination of all re-
sponse units in disaster situations. Assists in recovery 
operation.

JANUARY
Lowndes Academy Deer Hunt
For further details, call the school at 334-278-3366

Martin Luther King Celebration
Held in the Mosses Community

FEBRUARY
Christian Men’s Fellowship
Annual Meeting

MARCH
Spring Fling
Lowndesboro Landmark Foundation presents this 
event at the CME Church in Lowndesboro. There is 
an estate sale, lunch and country store

McCurdy Horse Trail Rides
Spring trail rides held in March of each year. Fall trail 
rides held in October of each year. For more informa-
tion call 334-872-5412.

APRIL
Community Health Fair
Project Alpha

Mt Willing Community Annual
Spring Bizarre
Call Dale Braxton for details: 227-0011

MAY
Head Start Family Fishing Day
Wil-Low Dollars for Scholars Awards Program

Corps of Engineers Youth Fishing Day
DHR Foster Care Month
Law Enforcement Day
Awards are given, games, and food

Relay For Life
Held on the Square, this event includes individuals 
who walk for pledges to support the fight against can-
cer. For more information call 334-548-2128.

JUNE
March for Jesus
Held in the Mosses Community

JULY
4th of July Parade & Celebration
Event held down Broad Street in Lowndesboro
ending in the Ruby S. Moore Park.

AUGUST
Jonathan Daniel Celebration Day
Held on the square in Hayneville Square

Okra Festival
Event held in Burkeville at Annie Mae’s Art Place on 
the last Saturday in August each year. Participants 
serve gumbo, okra and other regional foods. Local 
blues musician Sonny King performs. Local vendors 
and artists.

OCTOBER
Harvest Festival
The Town of Hayneville coordinates this festival in the 
Hayneville Plaza.

DECEMBER
Christmas Parade
Held around the square in Hayneville, this event 
includes schools, organizations, public officials, etc. 
For more information call 334-548-2128.

Faith In Action Christmas Gala
Different area churches host this event yearly

Wil-Low Walk-a-thon

RECREATIONAL PROGRAMS

4 Hand Youth Program
P O Box 218, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2553
Description: Agricultural information and education, 
home economics information, 4H and Youth Program 
and Food education program.

Adult Day Care, Unity Baptist Church
207 Benton Rd, Lowndesboro, AL 36752
Telephone ......................... 334-872-9901
Hours: 8:00 am – 4:00 pm
Monday thru Friday
Description: To serve and motivate the elderly and 
handicapped and to offer residents a chance for fellow-
ship with each other. Services include arts and crafts, 
transportation to public assistance agencies, and to 
doctors and dentists, and meal preparation.

Girls Scouts and Male Involvement
Lowndes County Head Start
P O Box 158, Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone ......................... 334-548-2145
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schools

(Grades 6-8)
MR. BERNARD MITCHELL,

PRINCIPAL
101 Lafayette St., PO Box 307

Hayneville, AL 36040
Telephone: 548-2184

Fax: 548-5237

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of Hayneville Middle School is to develop 

self-motivated individuals with the potential for analytical 
thinking, with a commitment to excellence and success at 
the senior high level. We will accomplish this by providing 
a highly motivated staff and a well defined curriculum in a 

conducive and nurturing environment.

(Grades K-5)

MRS. MARY PHELAN-JACKSON, PRINCIPAL
141 Main Street, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone: 563-7319
Fax: 563-7347

MR. KENNETH FAIR, DIRECTOR
147 Main Street, Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone: 563-7389
Fax: 563-9233

(Grades 9-12)
MS. PEGGY GRANT,

PRINCIPAL
145 Main Street

Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone: 563-7311
Fax: 563-7299

MISSION STATEMENT
To prepare students to become responsible citizens, 

effective communicators, lifelong learners, and “fierce 
competitors on the economic world stage.” Our intent 
is to encourage students as they explore horizons, chal-
lenge obstacles, and establish independence. We shall 
foster literacy, develop communities, and enrich the 

academic environment.
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(Grades K-5)
MRS. KIMBERLY WASHINGTON,

PRINCIPAL
570 Freedom Road

Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone: 872-0758
Fax: 872-2923

MISSION STATEMENT
To assure that students are responsible, self-assured, 

productive citizens who possess a desire for learning and a 
respect for self and others; provide a wholesome environ-

ment where dedicated staff members utilize a flexible 
curriculum relevant to the needs of the students.

(Grades 9-12)
MR. ROBERT O. GARDNER,

PRINCIPAL
8213 Co Rd 33

Letohatchee, AL 36047

Telephone: 227-4515
Fax: 227-8335

FROM THE PRINCIPAL'S DESK
As the history of The Calhoun High School contin-
ues, I am delighted to be a part of such rich history. 

I take great pride in our school and the successes 
that we have embarked upon. Our facilities are 

newly renovated with a beautifully elevated tower 
that is a beacon for the county also known as "The 
Lighthouse on The Hill". Please take a moment to 
tour our facility and follow the light that leads to 
"The Calhoun High School", home of the Tigers!

(Ages 3-5)
MS. SAMITA JETER,

DIRECTOR
107 West Lafayette Street

Post Office Box 158
Hayneville, AL 36040

Telephone: 548-2145
Fax: 548-2021

MISSION STATEMENT
We, The Lowndes County Head Start Program, with pride 
and dedication, will provide quality services in the follow-
ing areas: Education, Social Services, Disabilities, Parent 
Involvement, Health, Nutrition and Mental Health, by 

utilizing all available resources to enhance the developmental 
well being of all Head Start families and staff, empowering 
the participants with knowledge and self-esteem to become 

self-sufficient in life.

schools

CHUCK INSINGA,
HEADMASTER

215 S Broad Street
Lowndesboro, AL 36752

Telephone:
334-278-3366
Fax: 334-278-4476

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of Lowndes Academy is to provide both educational and social 
opportunities designed to help students become well-rounded, productive 
members of society. Our desire is to strengthen the students’ 
sense of patriotism, develop their awareness of social 
issues; and continue their emotional and moral growth 
based on Christian beliefs. We seek to prepare students, 
who come from diverse backgrounds and who have varying 
abilities, to meet the academic demands of college and/or to 
meet the challenges of the world of work in an environment 
that is nurturing and safe.30



economic development

Lowndes County
Industrial Park
Hope Hull, AL

Mid State Stockyards
Letohatchee, AL

Flying J Truck Stop
& Restaurant
Hope Hull, AL

Corps of Engineers
Benton, AL

General Electric Plastics
Burkeville, AL

Hayneville Public Library & Lowndes 
County Title III Building

“NEW FOR
2009”

Hayneville Police Department,
Hayneville Town Hall &

Fire Department

The Hayneville Plaza is the first shopping center to 

be located in the heart of Hayneville, Alabama. The 

shopping center was acquired by the owner, Karl Bell, 

in January 2003 and is steadily expanding in size.
Orchard Healthcare

Nursing Home
Hayneville, AL

Robert F. Henry
Lock & Dam

Benton, AL
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PLACES TO SEE

area history

The first Lowndes County Courthouse was 
built  on the town square in Haynevil le, 
the site of the present memorial to the 

Confederate dead. The building was 50 feet 
long, 40 feet wide and two stories tal l. It 
was constructed of handmade brick with 
twenty feet thick walls on the f irst story 

and 20-inch thick walls on the second story. 
The upper story contained six rooms. The 
cost of this f irst courthouse was $500.00. 
This courthouse served the county for over 

30 years, but in 1854, the building was 
declared unsafe. Construction of the new 
and present Lowndes County Courthouse 

began in 1855 and was completed in 1858. 
This building is one of only four antebel lum 
structures built  as courthouses in Alabama 

which are st i l l  being used today.

This is the copper-plated dome 

from the capitol building in Old 

Cahawba. It took six teams of 

oxen and approximately one 

month to move the dome from 

Old Cahawba to this church in 

Lowndesboro.

Confederate Memorial
Hayneville, Alabama

This house, now called Marengo, 

was built in Autauga County in 1847 

by Dr. Charter Campbell Howard. 

Dr. Howard moved to Lowndesboro, 

Alabama, in 1854 to improve his prac-

tice and brought his house with him. 

Each brick and board was separately 

dismantled, numbered, and floated 

down the Alabama River to Newport 

Landing, and then moved by ox-cart to 

its present site and re-erected. Today 

the home offers southern architecture, 

period furniture, historic preservation 

and a ghostly guest.

Memorial Marker
on Highway 80 south 

of Lowndesboro
placed where 

Viola Liuzzo was
kil led March 25, 1965.

Memorial Marker
on the town square in 

Hayneville in memory of
Jonathan Myrick Daniels 

who was killed
August 20, 1965.

Lowndes County is the site of a well-known story involving one of Ala-
bama’s most famous and colorful Indian chiefs, Red Eagle.  Red Eagle  was 
a half-breed, having a Scottish father and a Creek Indian mother. He was 
known as William Weatherford to the white settlers who knew his father. 
His leadership role in the massacre of white settlers at Fort Mims in Baldwin 
County in 1813 was the precursor of the military encounter in Lowndes 
County from which the story arose. The encounter took place at a site called 
the Holy Ground, or Ikanatchaka in the Creek Indian language. About 
two miles north of the town of White Hall, is the site where Red Eagle’s 
warriors gathered at Holy Ground, a high bluff on the Alabama River which 
the Indians believed was impregnable because it was surrounded by creeks, 
swamps, thickets, and the river. On December 23, 1813, a battle arose 
between the Creeks led by Red Eagle and American forces under General 
Claiborne, with Pushmataha's Choctaws as allies. The Americans killed 
21Creeks and forced the rest into the Alabama River and surrounding 

swamps. Red Eagle was the last Creek to retreat. Seeing his only 
escape from capture and death was a leap into the river, he raced 
his horse to the edge of the bluff, dove on horseback into the 
Alabama River, and escaped in a hail of bullets to fight again at 
Horseshoe Bend.

Holy Ground Battlefield Park
Benton, Alabama

Prairie Creek
Campgrounds 
& R. E. “Bob”
Woodruff Lake

Benton, Alabama

Camp year-round beneath majestic 
moss-draped oaks on the banks 
of the beautiful Alabama River. 

Campsites available. Enjoy boating, 
fishing, swimming, picnics, 

campfires, cookouts, and more.

Lowndes Interpretive Center
White Hall, Alabama

Ruby S. Moore Park
Lowndesboro, Alabama32


